
Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
Tuesday, October 1, 2019, 6:00pm 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order – Chairman Gary Burge.
2. Approval of the Agenda.
3. Approval of the Minutes from the September 3, 2019 Meeting of the Board.
4. Discussion Related to a High Density Single Family Residential Zoning District which was given a 

High Priority by Town Council within the Recently Adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan.
5. Consideration of a Recommendation to Town Council or Additional Direction to Staff  Regarding 

the Creation of a New Zoning District to Accommodate High Density Single Family Development.
6. Discussion Related to an Amendment to the Planning and Zoning Board Rules and Procedures 

Regarding Rule 13 – Duty to Vote. Said Amendment Shall Become Effective Upon Ratification by 
Town Council at Their Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting.

7. Discussion Related to the Progress of the Project Commonly Known as Northridge Commons 
Townhouses and a Possible Amendment to the Conditional Zoning District Which Governs Same.

8. Any other Business to Come Before the Board.
• November Meeting Date

9. Adjournment.



Agenda Item 3 
Minutes 



  
Page 1 of 3  September 3, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

Minutes – Tuesday, September 3, 2019 
 

 
The Planning and Zoning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly meeting at 
6:00pm on Tuesday, September 3, 2019 within the Council Chambers at Town Hall. 

Present: Vice Chairman Gary Burge, Board Members John Chase, Catherine Cordell and Steve Warren, 
Alternate Member Rachael Bronson, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson and Planning Director James Eller. Board 
Member Peter Stanz and Alternate Member Tom Balestrieri were absent. 

1. Call to Order. 

Vice Chairman Gary Burge called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

Upon calling the meeting to order, Vice Chairman Burge recognized new alternate board member Racheal 
Bronson who introduced herself to the Board. Vice Chairman Burge also noted that Ms. Bronson would be 
serving as an acting board member due to other absences.  

2. Election of Officers. 

Ms. Jackson shared with the Board the election process for officers as described in the Board’s rules of 
procedure. 

Mr. Warren nominated Vice Chairman Gary Burge as Chairman of the Board. All voted unanimously to appoint 
Vice Chairman Burge as Chairman of the Board. 

Chairman Burge nominated Ms. Cordell as Vice Chairman of the Board. All voted unanimously to appoint Ms. 
Cordell as Vice Chairman of the Board. 

3. Approval of the Agenda. 

Ms. Cordell motioned to approve the agenda as presented. Mr. Warren seconded and all voted unanimously. 

4. Approval of the Minutes from the August 6, 2019 Meeting of the Board. 

Chairman Burge recommended a revision to how individual Council members were identified. Mr. Warren 
motioned to approve the minutes as amended. Chairman Burge seconded and all voted unanimously.  

5. Discussion Related to a Zoning Map Amendment Application for a .3 Acre Unaddressed Parcel of 
Land on Monticello Road Which Proposes an Initial Zoning of R-12 Upon Annexation. 

Mr. Eller presented the application to the Board and noted that the intent of the property owner was to combine 
the parcel in question with an adjacent 19.5 acre tract recently subject to a voluntary annexation with an initial 
zoning of R-12.  



  
Page 2 of 3  September 3, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

6. Consideration of a Recommendation to Town Council on the Aforementioned Zoning Map 
Amendment Application. 

 

Ms. Cordell motioned to offer a favorable recommendation to Town Council on the initial zoning of R-12 for 
the property described finding said zoning compliant with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan (CLUP). 
Mr. Chase seconded and all voted unanimously. 

7. Discussion Related to a Zoning Map Amendment Application for an 11.21 Acre Unaddressed Parcel 
of Land on Merrimon Avenue Which Proposes a Rezoning from I-1 to R-12. 

Mr. Eller provided a staff report to the Board related to the proposed rezoning. Said report noted the location of 
the property, a zoning analysis based upon the zoning district desired, statements related to CLUP, Strategic, 
Reems Creek Greenway and Parks and Recreation plan compliance, and uses permitted within the I-1 zoning 
district which the property is currently zoned. Said report also contained statements from the Town’s Fire, 
Police and Public Works Departments stating in the affirmative the ability to service the proposed land use to 
the same extent under existing policies.    

Thomas Jones of WGLA Engineering spoke to the Board on behalf of the application noting several variables 
including size of the property, topography, slope and floodplain which presented difficulties in developing the 
property for industrial purposes as would be necessary under the current I-1 zoning district. William Ratchford 
of Southwood Realty, proposed property owner, also spoke to the Board on behalf of the application offering 
details on their developments in other locations and noting their ability to offer diversified housing options.  

8. Consideration of a Recommendation to Town Council on the Aforementioned Zoning Map 
Amendment Application. 

Mr. Warren motioned to offer a favorable recommendation to Town Council on the rezoning from I-1 to R-12 
for the property described finding said zoning compliant with the Town’s CLUP. Ms. Cordell seconded and the 
motion carried 4-1. 

Mr. Chase offered the dissenting vote noting that variables unique to the property could provide difficulties in 
achieving the density desired.  

9. Discussion Related to a High Density Single Family Residential Zoning District Which was Given a 
High Priority by Town Council within the Recently Adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

Mr. Eller provided a staff report to the Board related to the accommodation of high density single family 
residential development. Said report noted the priority Town Council had ascribed to the issue in the CLUP, 
existing dimensional conditions of similar projects previously approve as special use permits or conditional 
zoning district and the proposition to create a new zoning district or amend an existing district to accommodate 
such development. 

Concerns were shared related to the locations in Town where such a use should be permitted. Also, the relation 
of smaller lot sizes to more affordable housing costs was discussed.  

10. Consideration of Direction to Staff to Draft Language Regarding the Creation of a New Zoning 
District for such Development or the Amendment of an Existing Zoning District to Accommodate 
Same.  



  
Page 3 of 3  September 3, 2019 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

Consensus was gained that the creation of a new zoning district to accommodate high density single family 
residential development was preferable rather than amending an existing zoning district.  

11. Any Other Business to Come Before the Board. 

No further business was noted. 

12. Adjournment. 
 
Ms. Cordell motioned to adjourn. Mr. Chase seconded and all voted unanimously.  
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Gary Burge, Chairman 
Planning and Zoning Board 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
James W. Eller 
Planning Director / Deputy Town Clerk 
 



Agenda Item 4&5
High Density Single Family Rsidential Zoning District



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Town Council Priority 
 
Within the recently adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) Town Council prioritized 
each individual goal stated within said plan. “Consider land use regulation that provides for high 
density single family residential development” (pg.29) was given priority 1 (highest) and staff 
has chosen here to begin the work toward achieving the goals set forth in the CLUP.  

 
Analysis of Existing Conditions 
 
In order to begin analyzing the best way for the town to accomplish the stated goal of providing 
land use regulation that accommodates high density single family residential development, 
staff believes it prudent to observe the existing conditions within similar developments which 
were approved via a conditional zoning district or special use permit, which, to date, were the 
only ways for such a project to come to fruition.  
 

Analysis of Existing Conditions Related to High Density Single Family Residential Projects 
All Projects Shown Have Public Water and Sewer       
            
Lillie Farm Cove: North Main / Critter Trail       
Mean Lot Area: .1113 acres 4,848.23 sq.ft.       
Largeest Lot: .2 acres 8,698 sq.ft.       
Smallest Lot: .08 acres 3,672 sq.ft.       
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 45 ft.         
Setbacks: 25 front 6 sides 10 rear     

      Lakeside Meadows: Merrimon / Brown       
Mean Lot Area: .1847 acres 8,045 sq.ft.       
Largest Lot: .289 acres 12,589 sq.ft.       
Smallest Lot: .134 acres 5,837 sq.ft.       
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 50 ft.         
Setbacks: 15 front 5 sides 10 rear     
 
 

     



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Creekside Village (Phase 3): Merrimon / Aiken       
Mean Lot Area: .1535 acres 6,688 sq.ft.       
Largest Lot: .203 acres 8,843 sq.ft.       
Smallest Lot: .13 acres 5,663 sq.ft       
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 60 ft.         
Setbacks: 10 front 5 sides 10 rear     

      Weaver Village: Weaver / Weaver Village       
Mean Lot Area: .1222 acres 5,323 sq.ft.       
Largest Lot: .145 acres 6,316 sq. ft.       
Smallest Lot: .108 acres 4,7,04 sq. ft.       
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 60 ft.         
Setbacks: None: Site Specific Plan       

      Partridge Berry: Reems Creek / Dogwood       
Mean Lot Area: .1669 acres 7,270 sq.ft.       
Largest Lot: .207 acres 9,017 sq.ft.       
Smallest Lot: .127 acres 5,532 sq. ft.       
Approximate Mean Lot Width: 50 ft.         
Setbacks: 15 front 5 sides 10 rear     

 
What these numbers indicate are lots which would not be permissible within any of the Town’s 
standard zoning districts, the approval of which would be an administrative decision, and 
processed through the Town’s subdivision review and approval procedures. Deficiencies include 
calculations related to lot area, lot width, setbacks and in some cases all three variables based 
upon the dimensional requirements of our residential districts.  
 
It is the belief and understanding of staff that it is the desire of Town Council for such 
conditions to exist where these developments could be treated as traditional subdivisions 
within a standard zoning district and subject to the aforementioned review process.  Here is 
where work begins on accomplishing one of the first prioritized stated goals of the CLUP. 

 
 



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

How to Better Accommodate High Density Single Family Residential Development? 
 
Staff believes there are two options to accomplish the task at hand being the creation of a new 
zoning district or the revision of an existing zoning district. Via consensus of the Board and 
Council, staff is proceeding with the creation of a new zoning district. 
 
New Zoning District 
 
Sec. 36-106. - Table of dimensional requirements.  

Proposed R-4 District 

Zoning District  R-2  R-3  R-4 R-12  

Minimum Lot Area (sq. Ft.)  7,500 1, 2,3,4,7  5,445 1,2,3,4,7  
4,000 – 
7,000  

7,500 4,7, 8  

Minimum Lot Width(ft.)  75  75  50 75  

Minimum Front Yard (ft.)  30  30  10-25 30  

Minimum Side Yard (ft.)  
Abutting Residential District  

10 6  10 6  5-10 10 6  

Minimum Rear Yard (ft.)  
Abutting Residential District  

10 6  10 6  10  10 6  

Height Limit (ft.)  35  35  35 45 and no more than 3 stories  

 
 
 
 
 



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: How to Better 
Accommodate High Density Single 
Family Residential Development 

Prepared: August 2019 
Amended: September 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Plats Pertaining to the 
Developments Commonly Known as Creekside Village, Lakeside Meadows, Lillie Farm Cove, Partridge 
Berry and Weaver Village 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Dimensional Requirements within Similar Zoning Districts in Other Jurisdictions  
 
 Asheville 

RS-8 
Buncombe County 

R-3 
Black Mountain 

UR-8 
Woodfin 

R-7 
Min. Lot Area 4,000 6,000 5,000 7,000 
Min. Lot Width 40 - 15 50 
Setbacks (f,s,r) 15, 6, 15 10, 7, 15 20, 10, 15 20, 10, 30 
* All measurements assume public water and sewer availability 
 

 
Other Considerations 
 

• Due to statutory limitations, a municipality cannot totally prohibit manufactured 
housing (factory built using national HUD building code) from the jurisdiction. The R-3 
zoning district within the Town exists for this purpose. Therefore, the possible 
amendment of the R-3 zoning district to accommodate high density single family 
residential will have to take this into consideration.  

• Many ordinances distinguish between manufactured housing and modular housing 
(factory built using North Carolina Building Code). Modular units are often treated as 
site built homes for zoning purposes. This is the case within the Town of Weaverville as 
well. 

• R-1 is presently the only zoning district in which the primary use of properties is for 
single family homes.  

• Statutory limitations also dictate that a family care home, defined as an assisted living 
residence in which the housing management provides 24-hour scheduled and 
unscheduled personal care services for not more than six unrelated residents, must be 
treated the same as a single family home. A new district created to accommodate high 
density single family residential uses must also permit as a right of use family care 
homes under state law, “if 6 or fewer disabled persons, must treat same as single family 
residence” and federal law, “reasonable accommodation.” 

 



Agenda Item 6
Amendment to the Planning and Zoning Board

Rules and Proceedures, Rule 13



Proposed Amendment to the 
Rules of Procedure for the Weaverville 

Planning and Zoning Board 
 

 
Rule 13. Duty to Vote – Every member must vote unless excused by the remaining 
members of the Board. A member who wishes to be excused from voting shall so inform the 
chair, who shall take a vote of the remaining members. No member shall be excused from 
voting except in cases involving conflicts of interest [see Rule 14], as defined by the Board 
or by law, or the member’s official conduct, as defined by the Board. In all other cases, a 
failure to vote by a member who is physically present in the Board chamber, or who has 
withdrawn without being excused by a majority vote of the remaining members present, 
shall be recorded as a vote with the prevailing side an affirmative vote.  
 
Rule 18. Amendment of the Rules – These rules may be amended at any regular 
meeting or at any properly called special meeting that includes amendment to the rules as 
one of the stated purposes of the meeting, unless a statute or rule of Town Council provides 
otherwise. Adoption of an amendment shall require an affirmative vote equal to a quorum 
of the Board.  No amendment to the Rules shall be effective until Town Council has granted 
its approval.  
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 7
Northridge Commons Townhouses CZD

• Staff will be providing an update on the construction process for Northridge Commons Townhouses and discussing a 
possible amendment to the conditional zoning district which governs same.















PHILLIP & JUDY RICE
9733702787

D.B. 1281, PG. 78
ZONED EMP

G
ILL BR

AN
C

H
 R

O
AD

45' RIGHT-OF-WAY

SEE D.B. 1536, PG. 115

M
O

NTICELLO
 RO

AD
S.R. 1727

BETT STROUD B

WAL-MART

NICORYA INVESTMENTS, LLC
PIN 9733701669

D.B. 4805, PG. 397
P.B. 126, PG. 173

ZONED I-1
TELCO COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION

9733706746
D.B. 5149, PG. 1714

P.B. 138, PG. 60
ZONED I-1

WAL-MART REAL ESTATE
BUSINESS TRUST

PIN 9733706067
D.B. 4865, PG. 712

P.B. 110, PG. 96
ZONED C-2

WAL-MART REAL ESTATE
BUSINESS TRUST

PIN 9733706067
D.B. 4865, PG. 712

P.B. 110, PG. 96
ZONED C-2

ROGER AND KRISTINA YOUNG
PIN 9732790347

D.B. 1684, PG. 323
P.B. 55, PG. 160

LOT 5
ZONED R-3

LAWRENCE AND REGINA
YOUNG

PIN 9732699655
D.B. 1515, PG. 368

P.B. 55, PG. 160
LOT 1

ZONED R-3

JEFFREY ENGLISH
PIN 9732796773

D.B. 4706, PG. 267
P.B. 145, PG. 47

ZONED R-3

JAMES AND HELEN KEENE
PIN 9732797865

D.B. 1189, PG. 60
ZONED R-3

JOSE PADILLA
PIN 9733608012

D.B. 5094, PG. 1997
ZONED R-3

HFW ENDEAVORS, LLC
PIN 9733609546

D.B. 5448, PG. 1391
SHOWN AS NEW

RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA ON
P.B. 108, PG. 186
NO RECORD OF
RIGHT-OF-WAY

CONVEYANCE FOUND

NORTHCREST ROAD 60'

ZONED EMP

ZONED R-3

ZO
NED EM

P







PH
ILLIP & JU

D
Y R

IC
E

9733702787
D

.B. 1281, PG
. 78

ZO
N

ED
 EM

P

ROGER AND KRISTINA YOUNG
PIN 9732793370

D.B. 4594, PG. 365
P.B. 55, PG. 160

PORTION OF LOT 4
ZONED R-3 HFW ENDEAVORS, LLC

PIN 9732795330
D.B. 5448, PG. 1391

P.B. 55, PG. 160
PORTION OF LOT 4

TELC
O

 C
O

M
M

U
N

ITY C
R

ED
IT U

N
IO

N
9733706746

D
.B. 5149, PG

. 1714
P.B. 138, PG

. 60
ZO

N
ED

 I-1

SITE PLA
N

C
201

TY
PIC

A
L R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

 C
R

O
SS-SEC

TIO
N

1
            1,457

0.033

2
            1,460

0.034

3
            1,460

0.034

4
            1,460

0.034

5
            1,458

0.033

6
            1,458

0.033

7
            1,460

0.034

8
            1,460

0.034

9
            1,458

0.033

10
            1,512

0.035

11
            1,467

0.034

12
            1,470

0.034

13
            1,522

0.035

14
            1,458

0.033

15
            1,460

0.034

16
            1,460

0.034

17
            1,458

0.033

18
            1,584

0.036

19
            1,587

0.036

20
            1,587

0.036

21
            1,584

0.036

22
            1,584

0.036

23
            1,587

0.036

24
            1,587

0.036

25
            1,584

0.036

26
            1,668

0.038

27
            1,615

0.037

28
            1,673

0.038

29
            1,850

0.042

30
            1,554

0.036

31
            1,653

0.038

32
            1,691

0.039

33
            1,667

0.038

34
            1,584

0.036

35
            1,587

0.036

36
            1,587

0.036

37
            1,587

0.036

38
            1,585

0.036

39
            1,764

0.040

40
            1,622

0.037

41
            1,587

0.036

42
            1,587

0.036

43
            1,584

0.036

44
            1,481

0.034

45
            1,500

0.034

46
            1,500

0.034

47
            1,498

0.034

48
            1,609

0.037

49
            1,587

0.036

50
            1,585

0.036

51
            1,584

0.036

52
            1,587

0.036

53
            1,584

0.036

O
PEN

SPA
C

E
       213,457

4.900

Lot #
Lot Sq.Ft.

A
cres

Lot #
Lot Sq.Ft.

A
cres

Lot #
Lot Sq.Ft.

A
cres

N
O

TES

RO
A

D
 'A

'

ROAD 'A'

ROAD 'B'

C1

C
2

C3

A1

A2

B1

B4

B5

B2
B

3

B
7

B
6

B8

LEG
EN

D



Agenda Item 8
Any Other Business

• As you will see in the attached adopted meeting schedule, the November meeting of the Board is off normal 
rotation due to the municipal election. 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 2019 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 

Date Time Location Suggested Chair 
Thursday, January 3 6:00 Council Chambers Burge 
Tuesday, February 12 6:00 Council Chambers  
Tuesday, March 5 6:00 Council Chambers Chase 
Tuesday, April 2 6:00 Council Chambers  
Tuesday, May 7 6:00 Council Chambers Cordell 
Tuesday, June 4 6:00 Council Chambers  
Tuesday, July 2 6:00 Council Chambers Warren 
Tuesday, August 6 6:00 Council Chambers  
Tuesday, September 3 6:00 Council Chambers  
Tuesday, October 1 6:00 Council Chambers  
Thursday, November 7 6:00 Council Chambers  

Tuesday, December 3 6:00 Council Chambers  
 

 

 

jeller
Highlight


	P&Z Agenda for 10.1.19.pdf
	Agenda Item 3 Cover Page.pdf
	Planning and Zoning 9.3.19.pdf
	Agenda Item 4 and 5 Cover Page.pdf
	Staff Report - HD SFR.pdf
	Agenda Item 6 Cover Page.pdf
	Proposed Amendment to the Rules of Procedure - October 2019.pdf
	Agenda Item 7 Cover Page.pdf
	Northridge Commons Townhouses CZD & Siteplan.pdf
	Agenda Item 8 Cover Page.pdf
	2019 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS - P&Z.pdf



